
 
Board of Education 

Newtown, Connecticut 
 

Minutes of the Board of Education meeting on Tuesday, January 24, 2013 at 7:30 p.m. in the 
board room at 3 Primrose Street.     
 

D. Leidlein, Chair     J. Robinson  
L. Roche, Vice Chair      L. Gejda 
C. McCubbin, Secretary     R. Bienkowski   

 R. Gaines late        3  Staff 
 W. Hart           3  Public 
 K. Alexander                   2  Press 
 J. Vouros 
Mrs. Leidlein called the meeting to order at 7:44 p.m. 
 
Item 1 – Continuing Education Budget 
Elissa Gellis, Director of Continuing Education, told the Board that a half day was added for 
kindergarten students in the summer school program.  The summer program also ran for 16 
days instead of 12.  The middle and high school summer programs are self-supporting.   
 
Item 2 – Benefits 
Mr. Bienkowski reviewed some of the items under benefits which represents what is legally 
required and negotiated for the staff.  The biggest portion is the medical component.  The trend 
is running about 12%.  We are putting in a 4% increase for our self-insurance fund which is 
managed by Anthem.  The pension plan is administered by the town.   
 
Mr. Alexander asked why we weren’t trying to put in more money to get to the $3M. 
Mr. Bienkowski said the committee is comfortable with the amount we have.  Usually the 
consultant will reaffirm the figures. 
Mrs. Leidlein asked if an analysis has been done to see how we‘ve done since 2009 regarding 
the early retirements.  She asked to share it with the Board. 
 
Mr. Bienkowski spoke about workers’ compensation.  We’ve had difficulty getting the adjustment 
for transportation insurance.  The only separate policy is the school leaders policy.  Otherwise 
everything is with the town. 
The real fee for this year is $15,952.  Next year it will drop down to $13,080.  We always 
covered the maintenance vehicles.  Moving away from insurance for the buses we should move 
the maintenance of the vehicles to the plant budget.  He would increase the property and liability 
section of the maintenance budget and reduce the transportation insurance.  The $10,000 net 
reduction should be applied to workers comp.   
 
Item 3 – Plant Budget 
Mr. Faiella spoke about the Head O’Meadow generator.  The cost to rent one per month is 
$1,500.  A new propane generator would cost $23,750 and a diesel generator cost is $31,350.  
These amounts don’t include rigging fees and installation.  The installation cost is approximately 
$15,000.  He would like this replacement as soon as possible and prefers the diesel. 
Mr. Bienkowski said that at this time we could purchase a generator. 
Mrs. Leidlein asked where the money would come from and would add it to the next agenda. 
 
Board of Education    -2-    January 24, 2013 



 
Mr. Faiella stated that we are getting to a precarious situation because we keep pushing off 
jobs.  We need to act on all if we can.   
Mr. Alexander asked how long the high school parking lot has been listed. 
Mr. Faiella said 2 years.  The paving would be for the old sections.  Some of the cracks can’t be 
repaired. 
 
Mr. Faiella said that Chalk Hill School was approached by their parks and rec director in Monroe 
to ask if we could employ the person who took care of that building because she lost her job 
since we moved in.  We picked up additional 30,000 feet of space in that building. 
Mrs. Leidlein asked the cost of that position. 
Mr. Bienkowski said it was a part-time position and was not sure of the rate of pay but it would 
be less than $30,000. 
Mr. Faiella asked if it could be a contracted position. 
Mr. Bienkowski stated the contract could have a provision where we can hire someone for the 
balance of the year. 
Mrs. Leidlein asked for a proposal for this position at the next meeting. 
Dr. Robinson said this may be reimbursable. 
 
Item 4 – Transportation Budget 
Mr. Bienkowski said we have money in professional services which is for drug testing and 
training for the remaining owner/operators.  Maintenance is for the van for the high school 
programs.  Fuel is a big number but expenses have dropped from last year from $5M to 
$4.291M. 
 
Mr. Alexander asked if they asked for any additional money for fuel since changing to Chalk Hill. 
Mr. Bienkowski said there has been greater fuel utilization and he asked for their best estimate 
which he needs to know for the Serv grant.  They indicated the buses are getting back to town 
30 minutes later so they are paying their drivers more.  This cost should be reimbursable 
through these programs and our insurance.  The Serv grant goes out 18 months.  We may need 
to consider an adjustment for fuel.   
 
Mrs. Leidlein said the security committee is reviewing and creating a plan.  If people are looking 
for SROs they come from town side of the budget which will fund them.   
Mr. Gaines said the security committee is meeting next Tuesday. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Alexander moved to adjourn.  Mrs. Roche seconded.  Vote: 7 ayes 
 
Item 5 - Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 
        Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
        _____________________________  
                        Cody McCubbin 
                  Secretary 








	1-24-13 minutes.app
	1-24-13 minutes.r
	1-24-13 minutes
	Att.1


